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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guaraniee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The trustees present their annual repoit together with the financial statements and auditors’ report of the
charitable company for the year from 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018. The annual report serves the
purposes of both a trustees’ report, and a directors’ report under company law.

The company was incorporated as Ickford Learning Trust on 04 May 2016. On June 1t 2016 Ickford Combined
School became an Academy called Ickford School with the company name of Ickford Learning Trust

The Trust operates a school for puplls aged 4 to 11 serving a catchment area in Buckinghamshire. it has a pupit
capacity of 140 and had a roli of 130 in the school census on 215t January 2016.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution
The School Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the School Trust.

The trustees of Ickford Learning Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company law. The charitable company is known as Ickford Learning Trust trading as Ickiord School.

Details of the trustees who served throughout the period are included in the Reference and Administrative Details
on page 1.

Members Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.

Trustees’ Indemnities
The [iability of the Members will be limited to contributing the nominal sum of £10 on dissolution of the School
Trust as detailed in the Articles of Association.

Trustees cannot personally be held responsible for the debts of the School Trust that have been properly
incurred. However, Trustees can be held liable for debts incurred through actions in breach of their duties or
statutory obligations.

Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance fo cover the liahility of the trustees which by virtue of any rule of law
would otherwise attach {o them in respect of any negligence, default or breach of trust or breach of duty of which
they may be guiity in relation to the School Trust. The cost of this insurance is included within the overall RPA
scheme cost.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees
Trustees are recruited by means of advertising vacancies through the school website and newsletter, word of
mouth and nomination by other trustees.

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors’ report of the
charitable company for the period from 15t June 2016 to 31 August 2016. The annual report serves the purposes
of both a trustees’ report, and a directors’ report under company law.

The company was incorporated as Ickford Learning Trust on 04 May 2016. On June 151 2016 Ickford Combined
School became an Academy school called Ickford School with the company name of Ickford Learning Trust

The Trust operates a school for pupils aged 4 to 11 serving a catchment area in Buckinghamshire. It has a pupil
capacity of 140 and had a rolf of 130 in the school census on 218t January 2016.
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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Constitution

The lckford Learning Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable
company’s memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the School
Trust.

The trustees of Ickford Learning Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes
of company law. The charitable company is known as Ickford Learning Trust trading as Ickford School.

Details of the trustees who served throughout the period are included in the Reference and
Administrative Details on page 1.

Members Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable
company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year afier they cease
to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities
contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trustees’ Indemnities
The liability of the Members will be limited to contributing the nominal sum of £10 on dissolution of the
Academy Trust as detailed in the Articles of Association.

Trustees cannot personally be held responsible for the debts of the Academy Trust that have been
properly incurred. However, Trustees can be held liable for debts incurred through actions in breach of
their duties or statutory obligations.

Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance to cover the liability of the trustees which by virtue of any
rule of law would otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, default or breach of trust or
breach of duty of which they may be guilty in relation to the Academy Trust. The cost of this insurance
is included within the overall RPA scheme cost.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees
Trustees are recruited by means of advertising vacancies through the school website and newslettar,
word of mouth and nomination by other trustees.

When the Governing Body seeks to appoint new trustees recruitment details are set out clearly on the
schooi website and newsletters or in any specific correspondence to interested parties. The details
include:

= The core functions of the Governing body and the role of a governor

«  The induction and other training and development that will be available to new trustees to help
them fulfil it

+ The expectations they have of trustees for example in relation o the ferm of office, the
frequency of meetings, membership of committees and the willingness to undertake
appropriate training and development '

« Any specific skills or experience that would be desirable in a new governor, such as the
wiliingness to learn or skills that would help the governing body improve its effectiveness and
address any specific challenges it may be facing.

Potential Trustees are asked to submit a written statement outlining:

«  Evidence of the extent to which they possess the skills and experience the governing body
desires

«  Their commitment to undertake training and developmaent to acquire or develop the skills to be
an effective governor
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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Method of Recruitment and Appoiniment or Election of Trustees (continued)
Those standing for re-election should also include:
»  Details of their contribution to the work of the governing body during their previous term of office
+  How they plan to contribute to the future work of the governing body
The trustees elect or re-elect members by vote after considering all applications. if there is a tie, frustees
will discuss the strengths of the nominees further and another vote will be taken. This process will repeat
until a nominee polls a majority of the votes.

Election process for Chair and Vice-Chair
The term of office for Chair and Vice-Chair is one year following which either can be re-elected.

The Governing Board resolves that the following process will apply to the election of Chair and Vice-
Chair:

Trustees will be able to submit written nominations prior to the full Governing Board meeting and verbal
nominations at the meeting. A Governor can neminate him/herself for office and does not need to be
present at the meeting to be considered.

Nominee(s) will be asked to leave the room whilst the election process takes place.
If there is more than one nominee, the remaining trustees will take a vote by a show of hands or a secret
ballot. Please note that if a secret ballot is agreed, the clerk will tally the votes.

The nominee(s) will then return to the room 1o hear the ocutcome, which the clerk will announce with the
nominee polling the majority of votas being duly elected.

Where there are three or more nominees, the nominee polling the least votes will be eliminated and a
further vote will be taken.

if there is a tie, each candidate will be given the opporiunity to speak to the trustees about their
nomination and a further vote would be taken.

if there is still a tie, trustees should discuss the strengths of the nominees further and another vote will
be taken. This process will repeat until a nominee polls a majority of the votes.

Palicies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

A Trustee carries out the role of Development Governor who provides new Trusiees with a welcome
pack and organises any Governor training required through liaison with the Local Authority. Each new
Governoer is also assigned a mentor.

Organisational Structure

The Trustees form the Governing Body of lckford School which can delegate any of its statutory
functions to a commitiee, a Governor or the Headteacher, subject to the following restrictions. The
Governing Board must review the delegation of functions annually. The Governing Board will remain
accountable for any decisions taken, including those relating to a function delegated to a committee or
individual.

The following functions cannot be delegated:

The appointment or removal of the Chair or vice-Chair (Articles 82-92)

The appointment of the clerk

The suspension/removal of Trustees {Articles 65-67 E}

The establishment of commitiees and delegation of functions

The approval of the budget plan for the school financial year (Funding Agreement 2.2.2)
Changing of School name
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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Organisational Structure

The following functions can be delegated to a committee but cannot be delegated to an individual, even
in urgent cases:

. The review of the exclusion of pupils.

The Governing Board can still perform functions it has delegated. This enables the Governing Board to
take decisions on matters that are discussed at meetings on functions that have been delegated.

Any individual or committee to whom a decision has been delegated must report to the Governing Board
in respect of any action or decision made.

Delegated powers will be reviewed annually {Article 101).

The Governing Body delegate such powers and functions as they consider are required by the
Headteacher for the internal organisation, management and control of the School (including the
implementation of all policies approved by the Trustees and for the direction of the teaching and
curriculum at the School}.

The Governing Body agrees that the Headteacher will be responsible for staff appointments outside of
the leadership group and initial staff dismissals, subject to the adoption of the approptiate HR policies.

lekford Learning Trust appoints an Accounting Officer and as Ickiord School is a single School this is
the Headteacher.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Since becoming an Academy in June 2016 the school has continued to use the National Teacher pay
scales as determined by the DfE for all teaching staff and the Bucks Pay Scales for all teaching support
and administration staff. The Headteacher and Assistant Headteacher are also pald according to the
national pay scales.

All members of staff are subject to a rigorous cycle of performance appraisal that helps to determine
any development needs and professional development training and also ensures accountability of
performance against targets. The targets are set using the DIE Teachers Standards document and the
data held by the school regarding pupil performancs.

The Headteacher carries ott appraisal mestings with the teachers in September followed by half termly
performance progress meetings, a half yearly review and then a final review and assessment meeting.
Following the final meeting In July the Headteacher recommends the pay scale for each teacher and
informs the Finance, Premises and Personnel Committee who then make the decision to ratify any
change to salary. Teachers are then nctified of any changes to salary or contracts.

The Assistant Headteacher carries out appraisal meetings with the teaching support staff and midday
supervisors following the same format as the teachers. All appraisals are then shared with the
Headteacher and he makes any decision whether salaries should be increased in consultation with the
Assistant Headteacher and Finance Administrator. Any recommendations are then shared with the
Finance, Premises and Personnel Committee who then make the decision to ratify any change to salary.
Changes to salary are made in April.

The Headteacher carries out Performance Appraisal for administration staff using the same procedure
as the teaching support staff.
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JICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel (continued)

The Headteacher's salary is decided by a sub-commiltee of the Finance, Premises and Personnel
Commitiee who carry out an appraisal which includes an external and independent advisor. This
meeting should take place before December 315t each vear.

Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant Full-time equivalent employee number
union officials during the relevant period
None None

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of employees
0% None
1%-50% None
51%-99% None
100% None

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Provide the total cost of facility time Nil
Provide the total pay bill Nil
Provide the percentage of the total pay bill

spent on facility time, calculated as: Nil

(total cost of facility time + total pay bill} x 100
Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities such  Nil
as a percentage of total paid facility time hours
calculated as:

(total hours spent on paid trade union activities
by relevant union officials during the relevant
period + total paid facility time hours} x 100

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations.

Ickford School participates with wider networks for the benefit of its pupils and staff. it is a member of
the Bernwode Partnership, a group of local Buckinghamshire Schools including three Secondary
Schools, led by the Local Authority, as well as the Wheatley Parthership consisting of mainly
Oxfordshire Primary Schools and one Secondary School and one other Buckinghamshire Primary
School.

lckford School also fosters good relationships with individual schools in Buckinghamshire and
Oxfordshire and has been able 1o offer support to several schools in the past year in areas such as
Modern Foreign Languages, Writing and Gomputing.

The school is also a very active member of the Buckinghamshire School Sports Parthership and
successfully competes in competitive festivals throughout the year.
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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and Aims
The purpose of the Ickford Learning Trust is to ensure that Ickford Scheol provides a good education
for children by adhering to the following aims;

*To value each child as an individual with special abilities, gifts and needs and to ensure that they have
equal access to all aspects of school life and an enjoyable education.

«To create a stimulating yet orderly and safe environment conducive to learning in which children are
encouraged to be creative, independent and confident, lifelong learners,

To foster an environment that allows for creative and dynamic teaching whera every member of staff
feels valued and supported and has the opportunity for professional self-development.

*To work in partnership with parents, the community, and local primary and secondary schools
embracing trust, understanding and mutual support.

«To encourage children and staff to adopt healthy lifestyles by promoting physical activity as part of a
lifelong healthy lifestyle, encouraging them fo eat sensibly and helping them to form positive
relationships.

«To provide a safe and nurturing environment that allows for the development of the academic, cultural,
physical, moral, spiritual and social dimensions of each pupil.

«To promote integrity, honesty and self-respect in each pupil and develop compassion, tolerance and
respect for others.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
Every year the school publishes a Development Plan with specific objectives and actions. The plan for
the year 2017 -2018 contained the following:

Objective 1. To improve the quality of teaching from ‘at least good’ to ‘consistently outstanding’ so that
every child {(excluding SEN} attains the ‘secure’ assessment band in Reading Writing and Maths by the
end of the summer term.

Activities:

Robust assessment data collection and early intervention
Increased scholarly approach to staff meetings
Outstanding practice shared amoengst peers

Objective 2. To embed assessment procedures which have a measurable impact on chnldren S
understanding and progress and eliminate unproductive workdoad for teachers.

Activities:

Design of new marking and assessment procedures

In house CPD for all staff

Engagement of parents

Objective 3. To promote and develop citizenship within the schocl community.

Page 7




ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Objectives, Strategies and Activities (continued)

Activities:

School Council involved in creating links with other schools
Re-design of curriculum map for Citizenship
Creation of Blog aftached to school website- The Ickford Citizen

Objective 4. To maintain a safe physical environment that enhances the experience of the children an
enables the school aims. '

Activities:

Creation of low maintenance Garden area for staff and pupils

Survey for upgrade to LED lighting

Remaval of heating system and remediation work to ensure safe environment (unforeseen)

There are a number of unwritten aims that are embedded amangst the entire staff and manifested in
children’s achievements beyond English and Maths. These include:

O

o

o]

(o]

(o]

Every child to learn to read music and to leave Primary School able to play at least 2
instruments.

Every child having been taught computing and with a grounding in writing code and
programming languags.

Every child to have been immersed in physical activities and given opportunities to take part in
competitive sport,

Every child to have been taught techniques in art and given the oppertunities to develop in a
variety of genres.

Every child to leave school having learned at least one other modern foreign fanguage.

Trustee’s disposition of duties towards Public benefit
The trustees of the Ickford Learning Trust have complied with their duty to have due regard fo the
guidance on public benefit published by the Charity Commission in exercising their powers and duties.
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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Trustee’s disposition of duties towards Public benefit'(continued)
The trustees have ensured that they have provided public education for the eligible children of Ickford
and the surrounding villages, and have taken every opportunity to be involved in the activities of the

community, particularly through links with the church and other village organisations.

The School supports other schoals through the sharing of practice and knowledge to ultimately benefit

the wider community.

The School provides facilities for recreational and other leisure time occupation for the community at
large in the interests of social welfare and with the interest of improving the life of the said community.

The School is a partner in the Wheatley Partnership and, as such, continues to develop teaching skills

and capabilities across the local area.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievement and Performance
Annual results for Early Years Foundations Stage, Key Stage 1 and Koy Stage 2.

Earily Years Foundation Stage Profile 2018 Summary Resuits for

The number of eligible pupils is

Toacher Assessmont Results

fckford Combined School

22
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National (Emerging National for 2018)

of Development
2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018
86 93 82 37 37
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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Achievement and Periormance (continued)

The number of eligible pupils is

Teachor Assossmont Rosults

Key Stage 1 2018 Summary Results for
lckiord Combined School

22

ve
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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Achievement and Performance (continued)

Key Stage 2 2018 Summary Results for

ICKFORD COMBINED SCHOOL
Toa number of eligitte pup’s Is x|
Test Reuylts
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Wesdag

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The school has now completed its first full year as an Academy and mainiained its financial stability.
This was the school’s main objective in its first year of Academy status with the focus being on the
implementation of strict procedures and financial controls.

The Bursar has responsibility for the day to day financial management of the school working closely
with the Headieacher who reports to the Finance, Personnel and Premises committee (FPP). A budget
has been set and agreed by the FPP for the current pericd of reporting and for the financial year ending
31 August 2018, The budget was closely monitored by the Bursar who presented financial statements
to the Headteacher on a monthly basis.

The school receives its main funding from the Education Funding Agency (General Annual Grant
(GAG)) which supports the key objectives of the school in delivering a first class education to primary
children. The school has maintained a reascnable surplus for several years but having seen costs
escalate and salaries increase, this surplus is reducing each year.

Page 11



ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Retention and recruitment of teaching and support staff is challenging and is the most significant cost
to the school. The percentage of total budget commiited {o salaries has steadily increased since 2010
because staff turnover has been relatively minimal and teachers have earned incremental spine points.
The period concerned in this report has been one with more teachers on an Upper Pay Range (UPR)
than previously however, the appointment of two NQTs to replace UPR teachers in September 2018
should see the salary budget decrease. Nonetheless, the recent anncuncements of government
approved salary increases for teachers in the United Kingdom (September 2018) will need to be
carefully monitored if the school is {o operate within its financial means.

Bursar report on budget

1. The forecast up to 315 Aug 17 and the budget for 2017/18 is attached.
Forecast up to 31%' August 2017.

b.

C.

1.

The report shows deficit against the income and expenditure of £8,904. Including
capital income and expenditure there is expected to be a decrease in cash
equivalent holdings of £20,486; this shortfall will decrease previously accumulated
reserves (cash) accordingly.

There has been pressure to keep expenditure under control mainly due to the costs
associated with salaries (cover for maternity and long term sickness); extra
expenditure was also incurred in recruitment services (advertising and agency
fees) due to the difficuliies in recruitment of staff.

Although the school is leading into a ‘quiet’ period (summer holidays) | ses very
little scope for any significant savings as the main costs over this period will be
salaries and actuarial & audit fees.

Budaget 2017/18

The budget for 2017/18 has been prepared based on costs incurred in the previous
year and foreseen operational costs, however, there is always a certain amount of
intuition required in some areas of the budget. The General Annual Grant has
been decreased by c£10k, however, the expectations are that the Pupil Premium
will be in the region of £7k (not yet finalised), an increase of c£6.5k. Overall the
inceme is down on the previous year by ¢£5k and the expenditure is up by Cg4K,
whilst not significant, the budget prepared shows a deficit of c£25k.

Certain expenditure has not been included in the budget this year, these are:

1.  Recruitment costs — having had a successful recruitmsnt campaign |
have assumed that the school will not incur any costs assaciated with the
recruitment of staff.

2. Slaff absence insurance — this has been removed as there is very litlle
benefit for the premium pald (cost ¢£3.5k).

3. Trustees ‘buy in’ package with Bucks Learning Trust — The cost is
prohibitive when considering how much this package was used throughout
the year. Alternative sources are being considered.

Summary

ii.

Salaries are the most significant cost to the school. In March 2016 the moenthly cost
to the school was ¢£33k; the monthly salary bill forecast for September 2017 is
c£37K, an increase of ¢11% - mainly teaching costs.

The impact of salary costs on the budget is severe and the annual salary cost for
the period 2017/18 is 81.5% of total costs; the usual percentage for academies is
between 65 — 75% (source Bishop Fleming's ‘Academies Benchmarking Report
2017).
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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Bursar report on budget {continued)

iii. The incremental awards in the TPS salary scales for main scale staff is ¢8% per
annum; with five incremental awards this means a salary increase of 40% over 6
years of employment, with on costs (employers’ pension and NI costs) this
increases to ¢c48% over the 6 years of employment.

iv. There are a number of teaching staff eligible for these incremental awards,
however, this level of expenditure on salaries is not sustainable whilst the
restriction on government funding is in place.

v. The deficits expecied for this financial year and 2017/18 will impact on reserves;.at
the end of the financial year 2017/18 | expect the accumulated surplus {equivalent
of cash heldings) to be in the region of £30 to £40k. The school will need to
consider measures to ensure that future budgets are balanced if the school is to
remain financially healthy.

IMPORTANT — BURSAR RESIGNATION

In June 2018, the school Bursar Mr Partington resigned from his post giving a one month notice period.
Unfortunately, he was then signed off sick for the notice period so did not return to work after June 161,

On June 5™ 2018 the school fell victim to an e-mail scam and £9,960 was transferred to a bogus bank
account in error and not recovered. The incident was reported to the Local Authority and to the
Educational Skills and Funding Agency (ESFA) and logged with Action Fraud. The school was able to
recover £9,760 through the RPA insurance and the £200 excess fee through a personal donation from
a frustee.

In his letter of resignation, Mr Partington stated that the incident was not the reason for his resignation
which he had planned for some time, but that it had made it easier for him to decide to leave. The
Governing Body carried out an investigation into the incident and found that a Disciplinary hearing was
hecessary. The disciplinary procedures are continuing to be implemenied,

The post of Finance Administration Officer was advertised in July 2018 but received little interest and
since Mr Partington’s departure the Headteacher has been obliged to manage the financial affairs of
the school with the support of an experienced Finance Officer able to spare some time. The post for a
replacement was advertised again in September 2018 and several applications received. The school
hopes to appoint this post in early October.

Reserves Policy

The trusteos reviow the reserve levels of the School annually. This review encompasses the nature of
income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of
reserves. The trustees take into consideration the future plans of the School, the uncertainty over future
income streams and other Key risks identified during the risk review. The current strategy is to build up
reserves sufficiently in order to address the risks, uncertainties and priorities identified by school with
the level of reserves are subject to annual monitoring.

The Trustees consider that the free reserves at year end of £38,649 would be adequate to cover the
school's risks, uncertainties and priorities of operating as a School Trust.

At 31 August 2018 the total funds comprised:

Unrestricted 38,649
Restricted:  Fixed asset funds 1,045,872
Pension reserve (109,000)

Other -

£975,621
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ICKFCRD LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the scheol
trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this
reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statemenis. Further
details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting
Policies.

investment Policy

The scheol currently has no funding for investment purposes and it does not currently have an
investment policy; in the interim consideration is being given to short term bank deposits subject to cash
flow commitments. Trustees are committed to ensuring that all funds under their control are managed
in such a way as to maximise return whilst minimising risk. Any cash not required for operating expenses
is placed on deposit at the most favourable rate available from providers covered by the Financial
Services Compensation Scheme. Day {o day management of the surplus funds is delegaied to the
Principal within strict guidelines approved by the Board of Trustees.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board of Trustees are responsible for the management of the risks faced by the School. Detailed
considerations of risk are delegated to the Finance, Premises and Personnel (FPP) committee and a
formal review of the charity’s risk management processes is undertaken on an annual basis.

The Headteacher is responsible to the Trustees for the running of the School and provides regular
reports to the (FPP). This ensures that Trustees are well informed on all financial, operational and
strategic matters appertaining to the School which also enables the FPP to evaluate the areas of risk
for which they are responsible.

The key controls used by the charity include:

formal agendas for the FPP and Governing Body activity;

terms of reference for the FPP;

comprehensive sirategic planning, budgeting and management accounting;
established organisational structure and lines of reporting;

clear authorisation and approval levals;

criminal record checks as required by law for the protection of the vulnerable.

The principal risks facing the School are:

Financial - the School has considerable reliance on continued government funding through the ESFA.
In the last period, alimost all of the School's incoming resources were ultimately governtment funded and
whilst this level is expected to continue, for 2018/19, there is no assurance that government policy or
practice will remain the same or that public funding will continue, at the same levels or on the same
terms. This risk is managed by careful control over budgeted expenditure which tries to ensure that a
deficit does not arise for the year. However with increases in salary costs and other areas of expenditure
this was impossible in the reported period,

The school is currently very popular and risks to revenue funding from a falling roll are small. However,
the freeze on the Government's overalt education budget, possible changes in school funding formula,
funding arrangements for special educational needs and increasing employmant and premises costs
mean that budgets will be increasingly tight in coming years.

The trustees examine the financial health formally every term, reviewing performance against budgets
and overall expenditure by means of regular update reports at all full Trustees' and Finance and
Premises Committee mestings. The trustees also ensure sufficient funds are held to cover all known
and anticipated commitments.
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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (coniinued)
At the year end, the Schocl had no significant liabilities arising from trade creditors or debtors where
there would be a significant effect on liquidity.

The board of trusieas recognises that the defined benefit scheme deficit {Local Government Pension
Scheme), represents a significant potential liability. However, as the trustees consider that the School
is able to meet its known annual contribution commitments for the foreseeable future, the risk from this
liability is minimised.

Failures in governance and/or management - the risk in this area arises from potential failure to
effectively manage the School's finances, internal controls, compliance with regulations and legislation,
statutory returns, etc. The frustees continue to review and ensure that appropriate measures are in
place to mitigate thess risks.

Reputational - the continuing success of the School is dependent on continuing to attract applicants in
sufficient numbers by maintaining the highest educational standards. To mitigate this risk trustees
ensure that pupil success and achievement are closely monitored and reviewed.

Safeguarding and child protection - the trustees continue t¢ ensure that the highest standards are
maintained in the areas of selection and monitoring of staff, the operation of child protection paolicies
and procedures, health & safety and discipline.

Staffing - the success of the School is reliant on the quality of its staff and so the trustees monitor and
review policies and procedures to ensure continued development and training of staff.

Failure of key ICT software/hardware- the school invests a significant amount in |IT hardware but the
risk in fatlure is minimalised by the ongoing investment in technical support that offers value for money.

Fraud and mismanagement of funds —Although finance staff received training to keep them up to
date with financial practice requirements and develop their skills in this area, recent evenis have
highlighted the reality of the risk.

The school will appoint and clarify the role of a Responsible Officer to carry out checks on financial
systems and records as required by the Academy Financial Handbook and strengthen its risk
management process throughout the next period by reviewing systems and procedures, as well as the
risk register (e.g. via the Responsible Officer’s reviews of specific processes), and through the cverall
self-evaluation process that informs school improvement planning.

Through the risk management processes established for the School the Governing Body are satisfied
that the major risks identified have been adequately mitigated where necessary. It is recognised that
systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that major risks have been adequately
managed

FUNDRAISING

The school receives PTA donations and parental donations, and does not use professional fundraisers.
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{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS

The future aim of the school is to continue to offer a high standard of education for local children and
their families and to maintain the high standards already being achieved. There is a strong belief
amongst all stakeholders that we are an outstanding school and we would like to get Ofsted recognition
of this.

Our success to date is built on high expectations and high standards of teaching and in order to maintain
the core of outstanding teachers that we currently enjoy, we must be prepared to pay them appropriately
and competitively for their continued service. The appointment of two newly qualified teachers at the
start of the academic year 2018-2019 will reduce overall salary costs slightly but some savings will be
offset by an increase to salaries elsewhere.

In terms of classroom resources, the largest expense is maintaining the information technology network
and ensuring that classroom teachers have the appropriate technology to hand in their classrooms. We
have a rolling programme of fap top and PC replacement and all interactive whiteboards and projectors
were replaced with new touch screen technology at the stari of the new academic year, Whilst the
school met some of this cost, the Parent Teacher Association (PTA) raised a significant sum of money
towards it and covered approximately 75% of the total amount.

The replacement of the strip lighting in the classrooms with LED lighting has been planned for more
than two years now but changes to funding via a SALIX or SEEF loan have delayed this. The school is
now investigating private funding streams and other methods of funding the work based on the savings
in services ouigoings.

Whilst the fabric of the school buildings is in good order and the interior decoration in fit state, the
outside playground area is deteriorating and the decline appears to be accelerating. The outdoor
learning area used by children in the Foundation stage is also in need of resurfacing and renovation
and it would be cost effective to try and carry out resurfacing of the whole outdoor area in one project.
The school is currently obtaining quotations for surfacing work.

The ESFA recently carried out two site condition surveys and though the deterioratmg condition of the
outside areas was noted and affirmed, the surveyors expressed the opmlon that it was highly unlikely
that the school would receive any funding for resurfacing works. The aim is to discuss fundraising with
the PTA and to look at any other possible funding streams.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEHALF OF OTHERS

None

AUDITOR

In so far as the trustees are aware:

* there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware

+ the trustees have taken all steps that they ought {0 have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

This Trustees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of frustees,

as the company directors, on 18 December 2018 and signed on the board’s behalf by:

air of Trusiees
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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Ickford Learning Trust has
an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to John Ronane, as accounting
officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between Ickford Learning Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. He is also
responsible for reporting to the board of frustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal
control.

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and
in the Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 6 times during
the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings aftended  Out of a possible
Mrs Jenny Armitstead (Chair) 5 6

Mr Brian Woodham {Vice Chair)
Mr Paul Campbell

Mrs Vivienne Hayday

Mr Gavin Gibson

Mr Graham Dawson

Mrs Dawn Basnett (Staff)

Mr Nigel Jackson

Mr John Ronane (Headteacher)
Mr Richard Johnsion

N MMOIRN MM
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Attendance during the year at meetings of the Members was as follows {poriod 3 months):

Member Meetings attended  Out of a possible
Mr Andrew Walker (Chair) 1 1
Mr Bill Laar 1 1
Mr Jon Silvera 1 1
Mr John Ronane (Headteacher) 1 1

Governance reviews:

A review of the impact of Governance took place in April 2017 when the Academy was externally
moderated under Ofsted conditions by an independent consultant. The findings of the review concluded
that:

e The school does not clearly present how much progress Year 6 pupils have made since they
were in Year 2 and so governors do not have detailed understanding of how much progress
pupils make over their time in key stage 2.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

It would be even better if governors have a deeper understanding of current school data for
all year groups. 50 that they are totally clear about how pupils and groups of pupils making
slower progress are being supported

Governors are not totally clear about how filters are used to keep pupils safe when they use
the internet in school and they are not sure about what changes were made to the school

child protection policy in 2016,

None of the governors have completed training for the ‘Prevent’ strategy

Since the review, these points have been addressed and new documentation for all Governors is now
readily available and accessible. A Governor for Internet safety has been appointed and liaised with
the technical support team to ensure an understanding of the school security procedures and filters,
The Chair of Governors has completed the training for the Prevent Strategy.

Finance Premises and Personnel:

Finance, Premises and Personnel (FPP) is a sub-committee of the main board of trustees. Its purpose

is to:

The main responsibilities of the Finance, Premises and Personnel Committee are:

o]
)
Q

The initial review and authorisation of the annual budget

The reguiar monitoring of actual expenditure and income against budget;

Ensuring the annual accounis are produced in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 1985 and the DIE/ESFA guidance issued to academies

Authorising the award of contracts over £10,000

Responsibility for monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of the Academy's systems of
internat control (including review of the statement of internal control) and its arrangamaents for
risk management, control and governance processes and for securing ecocnomy, efficiency and
effectiveness (value for money).

Advising the Governing Body on the appointment, re-appointment, dismissal and remuneratlon
of the financial statements auditor and the internal audit service.

Advising the Governing Body on the scope and objectivas of the work of the internal audit
service and the financial staternents auditor.

Considering and advising the Governing Body on relevant reports by the National Audit Office,
the Education Funding Agency {including those from the local provider financial assurance
teams) and other funding badies and, where appropriate, management's response to these.
Establishing, in conjunction with Academy management, relevant annual performance
measures and indicators and monitoring the effectiveness of the internal audit service and
financial statements auditor through these measures and indicators and deciding, based on
this review, whether a competition for price and quality of the audit service is appropriate.
Monitoring the Academy's risk management plan and advising the Governing Body on its
adequacy and effectiveness

Producing an annual report for the Governing Body and accounting officer which should mclude
the Committee's advice on the effectiveness of the Academy’s risk management, control and
governance processes and any significant matters arising from the work of the internal audit
service and the financial statements auditor.

Monitoring and advising the Governing Body on any alleged fraud and irregularity in the
Academy’s financial and other control systems and ensuring that all allegations of fraud and
irregularity are properly foliowed up.

Recommending the annual financial statements to the Governing Bedy for approval.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

o Monitoring the effectiveness of the Academy’s whistieblowing procedures meeting privately
with the Internal and External Auditors, and separately with the Director of Finance at least
ance a year.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows {period 3 months):

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Mr Brian Woodham  Appointed 15! June 2016
Mrs Vivienne Hayday Appointed 15t June 2016
Mr Paul Campbell  Appointed 1% June 20186
Mrs Jenny Armitstead Appointed 15t June 2016
Mr Graham Dawson  Appointed 15t June 2016

DD~ @
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REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As accounting officer the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers
good value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money
refers to the educational and wider socistal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources
received.

The accounting officer considers how the trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the
academy trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

Effective deployment of staff and robust systems of performance appraisal that have enabled the school
to be included in the top 1% of Primary Schools in England for academic aftainment and progress.

The school constantly tries to secure value for money but accepts that staffing represents its biggest
expenditure as well as its most valuable asset. It is unrealistic to suggest that reducing staffing costs
offers value for money particularly in the current climate of teacher shortages. The school endeavours
to retain its strongest teachers and assistants and results justify this approach but it is unreasonable to
expect staff to work for less than they are worth or can be paid elsewhere. Early analysis of staffing
needs for the following academic year ensured that recruitment took place at a favourable time and the
schoel was able to access the pool of new talent completing teaching degrees. Subseguent recruitment
of 2 NQTs will see a reduction in overall teaching salarios in 2018 whilst confidence in the established
teaching staff is such that standards should not be compromised.

The school continues to provide a broad curriculum which includes high quality, music, art, computing
and PE lessons subjects which, in the current climate of budget cuts are reported as being lost in the
majority of schools.

Investment in new touch screens for every classroom will ensure that the children and teachers have
access to high quality ICT provision, with more sophisticated software, more reliable equipment needing
fess maintenance and a longer warranty to support their computing skills, their learning in other areas
of the curriculum and ICT skills for life. The purchase was supported by a diligent assessment of
providers and different versions of the latest technology and supported by advice from expert technical
support. The cost of the new screens was approximately
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Regular maintenance and refurbishment to the fabric of the building ensuring an attractive and
stimutating environment for the pupils.

The Accounting Officer considers that the school demonstrates good value in terms of public spending
because it exceeds expectations and offers a high quality education comparable to all other schools on
a very small budget.

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate
all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal conirol
has been in place in Ickford Academy Trust for the period 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 and up
to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with
the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks.
The board of trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September
2017 to 31 August 2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.
This process is regularly reviewed by the board of Trustees

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWOQRK

The academy trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regutar management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of
delegation and accountability. In particular it includes:

* comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees

¢ regular reviews by the finance, premises and personal committee of reports which indicate
financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital warks and
expenditure programmes

¢ setling targets to measure financial and other performance

* clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment} guidelinas

e delegation of authority and segregation of duties

e dentification and management of risks.

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The academy trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of
delegation and accountability. In particular it includes:
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comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees

regular reviews by the finance, premises and personal committee of reports which indicate
financiai performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and
expenditure programmes

setting targets to measure financial and other performance

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

delegation of authority and segregation of duties

identification and management of risks

The board of trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided:

To appoint Macintyre Hudson to perform the internal audit function

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

As accounting officer the Headteacher has respensihility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system
of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

the work of the external auditor

the financial management and governance self-assessment process

the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the resuit of their review of the system
of internal control by the finance and general purposes committee and a plan to address weaknesses
and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 18 December 2018 and signed on its
behalf by:

air of Trustees
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

As accounting officer of Ickford Learning Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy
Trust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of funding received by the Academy Trust,
under the funding agreement in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for
Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies
Financial Handbook 2017.

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or
improper use of all funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and
conditions of funding under the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial
Handbook 2017,

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notlified
to the board of trustees and ESFA.

Accounting Officer

18 December 2018
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

The Trustees (who act as governors of Ickford Learning Trust and are also the directors of the charitable
company for the purposes of company law) is responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial
statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction issued by the Education & Skills Funding
Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of
resources, including its income and expenditurs, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the
Trustees is required to;

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. cbserve the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2017 to 2018;

. make judgments and accounting astimates that are reascnable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that

the charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. He is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DIE have been applied for
the purposes intended. '

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 18 December 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

J Armitstead
air of Trustees
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Ickford Learning Trust {the 'Academy Trust") for the year ended 31
August 2018 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income and Expenditure
Account, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of freland’, the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Dirsction 2017 to 2018 issued
by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our oplnion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2018 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then
ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities
SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency.

BASIS FOR OPINION

Wae conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)} and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom,
including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the I1SAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:

. the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or
. the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may

cast significant doubt about the Academy Trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial siatemenis are
authorised for issue.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST

OTHER INFORMATION

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon. Qur opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. i we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees' Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’ Repori including the Strategic
Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report o you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

U the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and roturns; or

. certain disclosures of Trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors
of the Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liguidate the Academy Trust or to cease
operations, or have no realistic atternative but to do so.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our respensibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors' Report.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy
Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

A

BIANCA SILVA BA ACA DChA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of
MHA Macintyre Hudson

Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors

Abbey Place

24-28 Easton Street
High Wycombe
Buckinghamshire
HP11 INT

Date: 20 DLV o 201€

Page 27



ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ICKFORD
LEARNING TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 13 July 2018 and further 1o the requirements of the
Education & Skills Funding Agency {ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by Ickford Learning Trust during the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have been
applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

This report is made solely to Ickford Learning Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Ickford Learning Trust and the
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Ickford Learning Trust and the ESFA,
for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST'S ACCOUNTING OFFICER AND THE
REPORTING ACCOUNTANT

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Ickford Learning Trust's funding agreement
with the Secretary of State for Education dated 26 May 2016, and the Academies Financial Handbook extant
from 1 September 2017, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

APPROACH

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by
the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the Academy Trust's income and expenditure.
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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REFORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ICKFORD
LEARNING TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (continued)

The wark undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

* reviewing the minutes of the meetings of the Governing Body and other evidence made available to us,
relevant to our consideration of reguiarity;

*» a review of the objectives and activities of the Academy, with reference to the income streams and other
information available to us as auditors of the Academy;

« testing a sample of payroll payments to staff;

* {esting a sample of payments to suppliers and other third parties;

» testing a sample of grants received and other income streams;

* evaluating the internal control procedures and reporting lines, and testing as appropriate;

» making approptriate enquries of the Accounting Officer.
CONCLUSION

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities
which govern them.

Reporting Accountant
MHA Macintyre Hudson

Chartered Accountanis

Abbey Place

24-28 Easton Street
High Wycombe
Buckinghamshire
HP11 ANT

Date: L M,QMLL)Q] A8
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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2018 2017
Note £ £ £ £ £
INCOME FROM:
Donations and capital grants 2 16,586 - 5,474 22,060 131,139
Charitable activities 5 - 527,811 - 527,811 528,675
Other trading activities 3 16,798 - - 16,798 21,374
Investments 4 48 - - 48 65
TOTAL INCOME 33,432 527,811 5,474 566,717 681,253
EXPENDITURE ON:
Raising funds - - - - 363
Charitable activities 5,760 588,409 17,412 611,581 611,181
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 6 5,760 588,409 17,412 611,581 611,544
NET BEFORE TRANSFERS 27,672 (60,598) (11,938) {44,864) 69,709
Transters between Funds 17 (17,382) 7,282 10,100 - -
NET INCOME /
{EXPENDITURE) BEFORE
OTHER RECOGNISED
GAINS AND LOSSES 10,290 (53,3186) {1,838) {(44,864) 69,709
Actuarial gains on defined
benefit pension schemes 22 - 31,000 - 31,000 14,000
NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS 10,290 {22,316) (1,838) (13,864) 83,709
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS:
Total funds brought forward 17 28,359 (86,684) 1,047,810 989,485 905,776
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED 38,649 (109,000) 989,485

FORWARD

1,045,972

The notes on pages 33 to 56 form part of these financial statementis.

975,621
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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 10160645

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2018

Note

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 13
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks i4
Debtors 15
Cash at bank and in hand 20
CREDITORS: amounts falling due within

one year 16

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
Befined benefit pension scheme liability 22

NET ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION

SCHEME LIABILITIES

FUNDS OF THE ACADEMY

Restricted income funds:
Restricted income funds 17
Restricted fixed asset funds 17

Restricted income funds excluding pension
liability
Pension reserve 17
Total restricted income funds

Unrestricted income funds 17

TOTAL FUNDS

2018
£ £
1,040,498
3,519
30,348
55,133
89,000
(44,877)
44,123
1,084,621
(109,000)
975,621
1,045,972
1,045,972
(109,000}
936,972
38,649
975,621

2017

£ g

1,032,513
3,519
42,327
73,061
118,907
(39,935)

78,972

1,111,485

(122,000)

989,485
35,316
1,047,810
1,083,126
(122,000}

961,126

28,359

989,485

The financial statements on pages 30 to 56 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue, on 18

December 2018 and are signed on their behalf, by:

J Armitstead
air of Trustees

The notes on pages 33 to 56 form part of these financial statements.
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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 19

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment income

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Capital grants from DIE Group

Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents brought forward

Cash and cash equivalents carried forward 20

The notes on pages 33 to 56 form part of these financial statements.

2018 2017
£ g

1,947 8,749
48 65
(25,397) (113,037)
5,474 125,724
(19,875) 12,752
(17,928) 21,501
73,061 51,560
55,133 73,061
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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NCTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

1.2

A summary of the principal accounting policles adopted (which have been applied consistently,
excapt where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Irefand (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by ESFA,
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricled fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
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NCTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.3

1.4

Income

All income is recognised once the Academy Trust has entitlement to the income, it is probable that
the income will be received and the amount of income receivable can be measured reliably.

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities incorperating Income and Expenditure
Account on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for specific purposes but not
expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is
received in advance of meeting any performance related conditions there is not unconditional
entitlement to the income and iis recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred
income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entittement occurs before income is
received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating
Income and Expenditure Account in the year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect
of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the
asset on which thay are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in
the restricted fixed asset fund.

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis whers receipt is probable and the amount can be
reliably measured.

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period in which it is receivable and
to the exient the goods have been provided or on completion of the service.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic
benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in
settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by
activity. The costs of each aclivity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs,
including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs atfributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity
and support costs which are not atiributable to a single activity are apportioned between those
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources.

Expenditure on raising funds includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds
for its charitable purposes and inciudes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable
trading.

Expenditure on charitable activities are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational
operations, including support costs and those costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust
apportioned to charitable activities.

All expenditure is inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related fo events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of
a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

All assets costing more than £500 are capitalised and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and
any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached
to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income and Expenditure
Account and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged
directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income
and Expenditure Account.

Depreciation is not charged on leasehold land. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write
off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, over their expected useful lives on
the following bases:

Leasehold property - 2% stralght line (on buildings only)
Fixtures and fittings - 33.3% straight line
Computer equipment - 33.3% straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income and Expenditure
Account.

Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating
Income and Expenditure Account on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving stocks.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.9 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount. Prepayments are valued at the
amount prepaid.

1.10 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short term highly liquid investments with a short
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar
account.

1.11 Liabilities and provisions

Liabilities and provisions are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a
result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement,
and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount
that the Academy Trust anticipates it will pay to seftle the debt or the amount it has received as
advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payabie and similar charges.

1.12 Financial instruments

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis are as foliows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt in_struments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments. Gash
at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised costs as detailed in note 16. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial
liability, as the cash setttement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or ancther financial instruments.

1.13 Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered fo pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes. Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or
capital gains received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act
2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or
gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.14 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit
schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost
is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of guadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. As stated in note 22, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no
underlying assets to assign between employers. Gonsequently, the TPS is treated as a defined
contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which
they refate.

The LGPS is a multi-employer funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pensicn scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the fabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus
are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements
and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating income
and Expenditure Account and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and
interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets
at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference
between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is
recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.15 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The astimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in theso assumptions, which are disclosed in note 22, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the
pensions liability at 31 August 2018. Any differences bhetween the figures derived from the roll
forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension
lability.

Critical areas of judgment:

The judgments that have a significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements are
those concerning the choice of depreciation policies and asset lives.

2, INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

Restricted

Unrestricted  Hestricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2018 2017
£ £ £ £ £
Donations 16,586 - - 16,586 9,972
Capital grants - - 5,474 5,474 121,167
16,586 - 5,474 22,060 131,139

Total 2017 5415 - 125,724 131,138
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

3. OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

School fund

Hire of facilities

Before and after school clubs
QOther income

Total 2017

4. INVESTMENT INCOME

Bank interest receivable

Total 2017

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2017
£ £ £ £
7,099 - 7,099 12,225
3,179 - 3,179 5,737
5,401 - 5,401 2,569
1,119 - 1,119 843
16,798 - 16,798 21,374
21,374 - 21,374
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2017
£ £ g £
48 . 48 65
65 - 65
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NOTES 7O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

5. FUNDING FOR ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

DfE/ESFA granis

General Annual Grant (GAG)
Pupil premium
Other DIE/ESFA revenue grants

Other government grants

Other local authority income

Other funding

Trip and other income

Total 2017

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2017
g £ £ £
- 489,936 489,936 500,618
- 1,920 1,920 1,640
- 22,226 22,226 8,285
- 514,082 514,082 510,543
- - - 924
- - - 924
- 13,729 13,729 17,208
- 13,729 13,729 17,208
- 527,811 527,811 528,675
- 528,675

528,675

There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to the government grants above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

6. EXPENDITURE

Staff costs Premises Other costs Total Total
2018 2018 2018 2018 2017
£ £ £ £ g
Expenditure on trading
activities - - - - 363
Academy's educational
operations;
Direct costs 398,557 - 54,173 452,730 457 964
Support costs 61,633 59,839 37,379 158,851 153,217
460,190 59,839 91,552 611,581 611,544
Total 2017 457,642 39,657 114,245 611,544

In 2018, of the total expenditure of £611,581 (2017: £611,544) £5,760 {2017: £1,462) was to unrestricted
funds, £588,409 (2017: £597,313) was to restricted funds and £17,412 (2017; £12,769) was to restricted
fixed asset funds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

7. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

DIRECT COSTS - EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Teaching and educational support wages and salaries
Cther staff costs

Staff expenses

Educational supplies

Technology costs

Educational consultancy

Other direct costs

SUPPORT COSTS - EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Support staff wages and salaries
Depreciation

Pension finance cost
Maintenance of premises
Catering

Cleaning and caretaking

Energy

Risk protection arrangement fees
Rates

Transport

Technology costs

Staif related insurance

Legal and professional

Other support costs

Governance costs

8. EXPENDITURE - ANALYSIS OF SPECIFIC EXPENSES

Included within expenditure are the following transactions:

Total
£

Gifts made by the trust 25

Total Total
funds funds
2018 2017

£ £
398,557 397,127
4,324 1,966
690 6,534
17,598 19,164
7.630 6,848
3,530 4,771
20,401 21,554
452,730 457,964
61,633 60,515
17,412 12,769
3,000 3,000
9,899 6,375
154 235
8,255 11,917
13,770 6,551
2,600 2,600
7,249 665
782 390
6,523 1,384
107 4,084
5,776 17,783
7,656 10,178
14,035 14,771
158,851 153,217
611,581 611,181

Individual items above £5,000
Reason

Amount
£
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

9. NET INCOME/{EXPENDITURE)

This is stated after charging:

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:

- owned by the charity
Auditors’ remuneration - audit
Auditors' remuneration - other services
Operating lease rentals

2018

17,412
5,500
5,690

2017

12,769
5,000
4,310

735
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

10,

STAFF COSTS
Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

2018 2017

£ £

Wages and salaries 349,976 343,630
Social security costs 26,467 26,564
Pension costs 75,926 - 79,662
452,369 449 856

Agency staff costs 7,821 7,786
460,190 457,642

Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

2018 2017

No. No.

Teaching 5 4
Administration and Support 12 13
Management 3 4
20 21

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2018 2017
No. No.
In the band £60,001 - £70,000 1 1

The ahove employee participated in the Teacher's Pension Scheme. During the year ended 31 August
2018, pension contributions for this staff member amounted to £11,206 (2017: £11,208).

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprises the Trustees and the senior
management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits {including employer
pension contributions and employers hational insurance) received by key management personnel for their
services to the Academy Trust was £189,773 (2017: £211,829).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

11.

12.

13.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Academy Trust. The Headteacher and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect
of services they provide undertaking the roles of Headteacher and other staff members under their
contracts of employment, and not in respect of their role as Trustees. The value of Trustiees'
remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2018 2017

£ £

John Ronane, Headteacher Remuneration 65,000-70,000 65,000-70,000
Pensicn contributions paid 10,000-15,000 10,000-15,000

Dawn Basnett Remuneration 40,000-45,000 40,000-45,000
Pension contributions paid 5,000-10,000 5,000-10,000

During the year ended 31 August 2018, one Trustes {2017: £Nil) received £31(2017: £Nil) reimbursement
for travel and subsistence expenses.

TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

The Academy Trust has opted inta the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and
officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Leasehold Fixtures and Computer

property fittings  equipment Total
£ £ £ £

Cost
At 1 September 2017 1,040,496 5,000 2,830 1,048,326
Additions 11,329 14,068 - 25,397
At 31 August 2018 1,051,825 19,068 2,830 1,073,723
Depreciation
At 1 September 2017 14,436 - 1,377 15,813
Charge for the year 13,799 2,671 842 17,412
At 31 August 2018 28,235 2,671 2,319 33,225
Net book value
At 31 August 2018 1,023,590 16,397 511 1,040,498

At 31 August 2017 1,026,060 5,000 1,453 1,032,513

Included in long-term leasehold property is leasehold land at valuation of £355,000 (2017: £355,000)
which is not depreciated.
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14. STOCKS

School uniforms

15. DEBTORS

Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

16. CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year

Other taxation and social security
QOther creditors
Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2017
Resources deferred during the year
Amounts released from previous years

Deferred income at 31 August 2018

2018 2017

£ £
3,519 3,519
2018 2017

£ £
21,427 15,367
8,921 26,960
30,348 42,327
2018 2017

£ £
7,525 7,004
7,298 7,331
30,054 25,600
44,877 39,935
2018 2017

£ £
1,754 1,550
4,225 1,754

(1,754) (1,550)
4,225 1,754

At the Balance Sheet date the Academy Trust was holding funds received in advance for school trips

taking place after 31 August 2018.
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17. STATEMENT OF FUNDS

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2017 Income Expenditure infout (losses) 2018
£ £ £ g £ £
Unrestricted funds
General unrestricted funds 28,359 33,432 {5,760) {17,382) - 38,649
Restricted funds
Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2017 Income Expenditure infout (losses) 2018
£ £ £ £ £ £
General Annual Grant
{GAG) - 489,936 (532,534) 42,598 - -
Pupil premium - 1,920 {1,920) - - -
Other DIE/ESFA grants - 22,226 (22,226) - - -
Other restricted income - 13,729 (13,729) - - -
Transfer on conversion
from LA 35,316 - - (35,316) - -
Pension reserve {122,000) - {18,000) - 31,000 {109,000)
{(86,684) 527,811 (588,409) 7,282 31,000 {109,000)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2017 Income Expenditure infout (losses) 2018
£ £ £ £ £ £
Fixed asset fund 1,032,513 - (17,412) 25,397 - 1,040,498
Capital improvement fund 7,646 - - (7,646) - -
Other DIE/ESFA capital
grants 7,651 5474 - {7,651) - 5,474
1,047,810 5,474 (17,412) 10,100 - 1,045,972
Total restricted funds 961,126 533,285 (605,821) 17,382 31,000 936,972
Total of funds 31,000 975,621

989,485

566,717

(611,581) -
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17.

STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
General unrestricted funds can be spent on meeting cbjectives at the discretion of the Trustees.

The General Annual Grant (GAG) represents the core funding for the educational activities of the
Academy that has been provided to the Academy via the Education and Skills Funding Agency and the
Department for Education. The GAG fund has been set up because the GAG must be used for the
normal running costs of the Academy.

The other DIE/ESFA restricted funds represent other funding received from the government which does
not form part of GAG but is received in relation to specific purposes.

The transfer from other restricted funds and unrestricted funds to the General Annual Grant fund is to top
up General Annual Grant funds. Transfers from unrestricted to restricted fixed asset funds represent
capital additfons in the year,

The pension reserve fund represents the separately identifiable pension scheme deficit inherited from the
local authority upon conversion to academy status, and through which all the pension scheme
movements are recognised.

The fixed assets fund has been set up to recognise the tangible assets gifted to the Academy upon
conversion which represent the school site including the long leasehold land and buildings and all
material items included therein, and all additions subsequent to conversion. Depreciation charged on
those inherited assets is allocated o the fund. It also includes all other tangible fixed assets bought from
grants.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on
the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2018.
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17. STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

STATEMENT OF FUNDS - PRIOR YEAR

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2016 Income  Expenditure infout (losses) 2017
£ £ £ £ £ £
General funds
General unrestricted funds 2,967 26,854 (1,462) - - 28,359
Restricted funds
Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2016 Income Expenditure infout (losses) 2017
g £ e £ £ £
General Annual Grant
{GAG) 13,490 500,618 {549,256) 35,148 - -
Pupil premium - 1,640 (1,640) - -
Other DIE/ESFA grants - 8,285 (8,285) - -
Other local authority
income - 924 (924) - - -
Other restricted income - 17,208 (17,208) - - -
Transfer on conversion
from LA 70,464 - - {35,148) - 35,316
Pensicn reserve (116,000) - (20,000) - 14,000 (122,000)
{32,0486) 528,675 {697,313) - 14,000 {86,684)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2016 Income  Expenditure infout (losses) 2017
£ £ £ £ £ £
Fixed asset fund 932,245 - (12,769) 113,037 1,032,513
Capital improvement fund - 115,682 - {108,036) 7,646
Other DIE/ESFA capital
grants 2,610 5,485 - (444) - 7,651
Donations - 4,557 - (4,557} - -
934,855 125,724 (12,769) - - 1,047,810
Total restricted funds 902,809 654,399 (610,082) - 14,000 961,126
Total of funds 14,000 989,485

905,776

681,253

(611,544) -
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A CURRENT YEAR 12 MONTHS AND PRIOR YEAR 12 MONTHS COMBINED POSITION IS AS FOLLOWS:

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2016 Income Expenditure infout {losses) 2018
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General unrestricted funds 2,967 60,286 (7,222) (17,382) - 38,649
Restricted funds
Bafance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2016 Income Expenditure infout (losses) 2018
£ £ £ £ £ £
General Annual Grant
{GAG) 13,490 990,554  {1,081,790) 77,746 -
Pupil premium - 3,560 (3,560) - - -
Other DfE/ESFA granis 30,511 {30,511) - - -
Other local authority
income - 924 (924) - - -
Other restricted income - 30,937 {30,937) - - -
Transfer on conversion
from LA 70,464 - - (70,464) - -
Pension reserve (116,000) - {38,000) - 45,000 (109,000)
(32,046) 1,056,486 (1,185,722) 7,282 45,000 (109,000)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Balance at 'Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2016 Income Expenditure infout (losses) 2018
£ £ £ £ £ £
Fixed asset fund 032,245 - {30,181) 138,434 - 1,040,498
Capital improvement fund - 115,682 - (115,682) - -
Other DIE/ESFA capital
grants 2,610 10,959 - (8.095) - 5,474
Donations - 4,557 - (4.557) - -
934,855 131,198 {30,181) 10,100 1,045,972
902,809 1,187,684  (1,215,903) 17,382 45,000 936,972
Total of funds 905,776 1,247,970 45,000 975,621

(1,223,125) -
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18. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

Restricied
Unrestricted Resiricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2018
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - 1,040,498 1,040,498
Current assets 38,649 44,877 5,474 89,000
Creditors due within one year - (44,877) - (44,877)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - {109,000) - {109,000)
38,649 (109,600} 1,045,972 975,621
ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - PRIOR YEAR
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
funds funds  fixed asset funds
funds
2017 2017 2017 2017
£ £ g £
Tangible fixed assets - - 1,032,513 1,032,513
Current assets 28,359 75,251 15,297 118,907
Creditors due within one year - (39,935) - {39,935)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - {122,000) - (122,000)
28,359 (86,684) 1,047,810 989,485
19. RECONCILIATION OF NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
2018 2017
£ £
Net (expenditure)/income for the year (as per Statement of Financial
Activities) (44,864) 69,709
Adjustment for:
Depreciation charges 17,412 12,769
Dividends, interest and rents from investments (48) {65)
Decrease in stocks - 377
Decrease in debtors 11,979 16,702
Increase in creditors 4,942 14,981
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income {5,474) {125,724)
Pension adjustments 18,000 20,000
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,947 8,749
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20.

21,

22,

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2018 2017

£ £

Cash in hand 55,133 73,061

Total 55,133 73,061

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 August 2018 the Academy Trust had capital commitments as follows:

2018 2017

£ £

Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements - 8,187

PENSION COMMITMENTS

The Academy Trust's employees belong to iwo principal pension schemes: the Teacher's Pension
Scheme for England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Buckinghamshire County Council.
Both are Multi-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31
March 2016.

Contributions amounting to £7,298 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2018 (2017 - £7,331) and
are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme
Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-ime teachers in
academies and, from 1 January 2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment following
appointment or a change of contract, although they are able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you go' basis ~ these
contributions along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other
pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions,
Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of
benetfits and many other factors. The lalest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March
2012 and in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 9 June 2014. The key
elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:
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22,

PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

¢ employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay, including a 0.08% employer
administration charge.

» total scheme liabilities {pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service 1o the effective date of £191,500 millicn, and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date} of £176,600 millicn giving a notional
past service deficit of £14,900 million

+ an smployer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations

» the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of
real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%.

The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer rate of 16.4%, which was payable from September
2015. The next valuation of the TPS is currently underway based on April 2016 data, whereupon the
employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be payable from 1 April 2018,

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £41,545 (2017 - £41,474).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website
{www teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2014/06/publication-of-the-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme. The Academy Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with assets held in separate trustee-administered funds,
The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2018 was £24,000 (2017 - £26,000), of which
employer's contributions totalled £19,000 (2017 - £27,000) and employees' contributions totalled £5,000
(2017 - £5,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 22.8% for employers and between
5.5% and 12.5% for employess.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Dopartment for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions;

2018 2017
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 2.65 % 2.60 %
Rate of increase in salaries 3.80 % 4.20 %
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation 2.30 % 2.70 %
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.30 % . 270%
RPlincrease 3.30 % 3.60 %
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22,

PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for fulure improvements in mortality rates.

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today
Males
Fernales

Retiring in 20 years
Males
Females

Sensitivity analysis - present value of total obligation

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CPl rate +0.1%

CPl rate -0.1%

The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities
Gilts
Bonds
Property
Other

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £5,000 (2017 - £714,000).

2018

24.0
26.1

26.3
28.5

At 31 August

2017

23.9
26.0

26.2
28.3

At 31 August

2018 2017

£ £

297,000 255,000
309,000 266,000
313,000 268,000
294,000 252,000
309,000 265,000
297,000 255,000
Fair value at Fair value at
31 August 31 August
2018 2017

£ £

102,000 77,000
22,000 12,000
24,000 18,000
14,000 10,000
32,000 21,000
194,000 138,000
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22,

PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

The amounts recognised In the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income and Expenditure

Account are as follows:

2018 2017
£ £
Current service cost (34,000) (38,000)
Interest cost (3,000) {3,000)
Total (37,000} ' (41,000)
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:
2018 2017
£ £
Opening defined benefit obligation 260,000 214,000
Current service cost 34,000 38,000
Interest cost 7,000 5,000
Employee contributions 5,000 5,000
Actuarial gains {30,000) (2,000)
Benefits paid 27,000 -
Closing defined benefit obligation 303,000 260,000
Movements in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets:
2018 2017
£ £
Opening fair value of scheme assels 138,000 98,000
Interest income 4,000 2,000
Actuarial gains 1,000 12,000
Employer contributions 19,000 21,000
Employee contributions 5,000 5,000
Benefits paid 27,000 -
Closing fair value of scheme assets 194,000 138,000
The amount shown in the Statement of Financial Activities is:
2018 207
£ £
Changes in financial assumpticns 30,000 2,000
Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest 1,000 12,000
Actuarial gains/(looses) on defined benefit pension schemes 31,000 14,000

Page 55



ICKFORD LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

23.

24,

PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

The amount shown in the Balance Sheet is:

2018 2017

£ £

Present value of defined benefit obligation {303,000) {260,000)
Fair value of scheme assets 194,000 138,000
Defined benefit pension scheme liability {109,000) {122,000)

MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £ 10 for the debis and liahilities contracted
before hefshe ceases to be a member.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Owing 1o the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which
Trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook and with the frust's financial regulations and
normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.

During the year the Academy Trust was invoiced £2,250 by Fuze Technologies (2017: £Nif), a company
in which Jon Silvera is a director and is a Trustee of the Academy Trust. No balances were outstanding at
the year end.

No other related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain. Trustees’
remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 11.
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Ta find out more about the people behingd the name visit
www.macintyrehudson.co.uk or email us at info@mhblip.co.ulk

Bedford

Equipoise House

Crove Place

Bedford MIK40 3LE

T: +44 (0)1234 268761

F: +44 (0)1234 346801

E: bedfordinfo@mhllp.co.uk

Birmingham

Rutland House

148 Edmund Street
Birmingham B3 2FD

T:+44 (0)1212 360465

F:+44 (0)1212 361465

E: birminghaminfo@mbhlip.co.uk

Canterbury

71 New Dover Road
Canterbury, Kent CTT 3BL

T: +44 (0)1227 464991

F: +44 (0)1227 451796

E: canterburyinfo@mhilip.co.uk

Chelmsfard

Boundary House

4 County Place

Chelmsford CM2 ORE

T: +44 (0)1245 353177

F: +44 (0)1245 252877

E: chelmsfordinfo@mhllp.co.uk

High Wycombe

Abbey Place

24-28 Easton Street

High Wycombe HP11 INT

T:+44 (0)1494 441226

F:+44 {0)1494 465591

E: highwycambeinfo@mhllp.co.uk

Leicester

11 Merus Court

Meridian Business Park
|eicester LET9 1RJ

T:+44 (0)116 289 4289
Fred4 (0)116 289 4321

E: leicesterinfo®mbllp.co.uk

London City

New Bridge Street House
30-34 New Bridge Street
London EC4V 6B)

T: +44 {(0)20 7425 4100

F: +44 (0)20 7248 8939

E: londoncinfo@mhllip.co.uk

London Nerth

Euro House

1394 High Road

Landon N20 9YZ

T: +44 (0)20 8446 0922

F: +44 (0)20 8446 7686

E: londoninfe@mhlilp.co.ul¢

Maidstone

Victoria Court

17-21 Ashford Road
Maidstone

Kent ME14 5FA

T: +44 {0¥1 622 754033

F: +44 (0}1622 679732

E: maidstoneinfo@mhllp.co.uk

Mifton Keynes

Moorgate House

201 Silbury Boulevard

Milton Keynes MiK9 1LZ

T: +44 (01008 662255

F: +44 (0)1908 678247

E: miltonkeynesinfo@mbhlip.co.uk

Northampton

Peterbridge House

The Lalees

Northampton NN4 7HB

T: +44 (0)1604 624011

F:+44 (0)1604 230079

E: northamptoninfe@mhllp.co.uk

MHA Macintyre Hudson

GLOBAL EXPERTISE « NATIONAL EXPERIENCE » LOCAL EXCELLENCE®

Peterborough

t The Forum, Minerva Business Park
lLynch Wood

Peterborough PE2 6FT

T. +44 {0)1733 568491

F:+44 {0)1733 555548

E: peterboroughinfo@mbhllp.co.uk

Reading

Pennant House

1-2 Napier Court

Napier Road

Reading RG1 88W

T: +44 (1)118 950 3895
F:+44 (1)118 958 5884

E: readinginfo@mhiip.co.uk

Key contacts at specialist companies:

MHA Macintyre Hudson Corporate Finance
Laurence Whitehead

T: +44 {0)845 366 4793

E: mhcfinfo@mhllp.co.uk

MacIntyre Hudson Advisory Services Ltd
Gordon Norris

T. +44 (0020 7429 4100

E: mhasinfo@mhlip.co.uk

MHA MaclIntyre Hudson Wealth Management
Independent financial advisers
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